
 
 
 

 

 
West Northamptonshire Council 

www.westnorthants.gov.uk  

Northamptonshire Police, Fire and 
Crime Panel 

A meeting of the Northamptonshire Police, Fire and Crime Panel will  
be held in the Jeffrey Room, The Guildhall, St Giles Street, Northampton 
NN1 1DE on Thursday 30 November 2023 at 3.30 pm or upon the rise of 

the preceding Panel meeting, whichever is the later. 
 
 
 

Agenda 
 .  
1.  Apologies for Absence and Notification of Substitute Members  

  
2.  Notification of requests from members of the public to address the meeting  

Any requests to speak on an item on the agenda should be notified to the Chair  
(c/o the Committee Manager) by 12 noon two working days before the date of the 
meeting. 
  

3.  Declarations of Interest  
Members are asked to declare any interest and the nature of that interest which they 
may have in any of the items under consideration at this meeting. 
  

4.  Chair's Announcements  
To receive communications from the Chair. 
  
SCRUTINY OF THE POLICE, FIRE AND CRIME COMMISSIONER 

 
5.  Confirmation Hearing - Police, Fire and Crime Commissioner's Chief Finance 

Officer  
 
a)   Confirmation Hearing Procedure (Pages 5 - 10) 
 
b)   Proposed appointment by the Police, Fire and Crime Commissioner for 

Northamptonshire of an interim Chief Finance Officer (Pages 11 - 22) 
  

6.  Urgent Business  
The Chair to advise whether they have agreed to any items of urgent business being 
admitted to the agenda. 
  

Public Document Pack

Page 1



7.  Exclusion of Press and Public  
In respect of the following items the Chair may move the resolution set out below, on 
the grounds that if the public were present it would be likely that exempt information 
(information regarded as private for the purposes of the Local Government Act 1972) 
would be disclosed to them: The Panel is requested to resolve: “That under Section 
100A of the Local Government Act 1972, the public be excluded from the meeting for 
the following item(s) of business on the grounds that if the public were present it 
would be likely that exempt information under Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Act of the 
descriptions against each item would be disclosed to them.” 
  

8.  Report and recommendation to the Police, Fire and Crime Commissioner for 
Northamptonshire on the proposed appointment of an interim Chief Finance 
Officer  
Exemption under Paragraph 1 – Information relating to any individual.  
 

 
Catherine Whitehead 
Proper Officer 
22 November 2023 
 
 
Northamptonshire Police, Fire and Crime Panel Members: 

Councillor David Smith (Chair) Councillor Gill Mercer (Vice-Chair) 
Councillor Fiona Baker Councillor Jon-Paul Carr 
Councillor André González De Savage Councillor Dorothy Maxwell 
Councillor Zoe McGhee Councillor Ken Pritchard 
Councillor Russell Roberts Councillor Winston Strachan 
Mrs Anita Shields Miss Pauline Woodhouse 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 Page 2



 

Information about this Agenda 
 
Apologies for Absence 
Apologies for absence and the appointment of substitute Members should be notified to 
democraticservices@westnorthants.gov.uk prior to the start of the meeting.  
 
 
Declarations of Interest 
Members are asked to declare interests at item 3 on the agenda or if arriving after the start 
of the meeting, at the start of the relevant agenda item 
 
 
Local Government and Finance Act 1992 – Budget Setting, Contracts & 
Supplementary Estimates 
Members are reminded that any member who is two months in arrears with Council Tax 
must declare that fact and may speak but not vote on any decision which involves budget 
setting, extending or agreeing contracts or incurring expenditure not provided for in the 
agreed budget for a given year and could affect calculations on the level of Council Tax. 
 
 
Evacuation Procedure 
If a continuous fire alarm sounds you must evacuate the building via the nearest available 
fire exit. Members and visitors should proceed to the assembly area as directed by 
Democratic Services staff and await further instructions.  
 
 
Access to Meetings 
If you have any special requirements (such as a large print version of these papers or 
special access facilities) please contact the officer named below, giving as much notice as 
possible before the meeting. 
 
 
Mobile Phones 
Please ensure that any device is switched to silent operation or switched off. 
 
 
Queries Regarding this Agenda 
If you have any queries about this agenda please contact James Edmunds, Democratic 
Services, via the following:  
 
Tel: 07500 605276 
Email: democraticservices@westnorthants.gov.uk  
 
Or by writing to:  
 
West Northamptonshire Council 
The Guildhall 
St Giles Street 
Northampton 
NN1 1DE 
 
 

Page 3

mailto:democraticservices@westnorthants.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 
 

 

Item no:
08(a)
 

 
 

                                   
NORTHAMPTONSHIRE POLICE, FIRE AND CRIME PANEL 

 
30 NOVEMBER 2023 

 

 
List of Appendices 
 
None 
 
1. Purpose of Report 
 
1.1. The report is intended to advise the Northamptonshire Police, Fire and Crime Panel of the 

procedure to be followed for a confirmation hearing in relation to the proposed appointment by 
the Police, Fire and Crime Commissioner for Northamptonshire of an interim Chief  
Finance Officer.  

 
2. Executive Summary 
 
2.1 The report summarises the Northamptonshire Police, Fire and Crime Panel’s statutory 

responsibilities relating to reviewing and making a report on the proposed appointment by the 
Police, Fire and Crime Commissioner for Northamptonshire of an interim Chief Finance Officer.  
A report by the Police, Fire and Crime Commissioner providing information on the proposed 
appointment is included separately on the agenda for the hearing. The need to appoint an interim 
Chief Finance Officer arises from the retirement of the current post holder at the end of 2023. 
 

3. Recommendations 
 
3.1 It is recommended that the Northamptonshire Police, Fire and Crime Panel reviews and makes a 

report on the proposed appointment by the Police, Fire and Crime Commissioner for 
Northamptonshire of an interim Chief Finance Officer. 
 

Report Title 
 

Confirmation hearing in relation to the proposed appointment by 
the Police, Fire and Crime Commissioner for Northamptonshire of 
an interim Chief Finance Officer. 

Report Author James Edmunds, Democratic Services Assistant Manager,  
West Northamptonshire Council 
James.edmunds@westnorthants.gov.uk  

Page 5

Agenda Item 5a

mailto:James.edmunds@westnorthants.gov.uk


 
 

 

3.2 Reasons for Recommendation(s) – The recommendation is intended to enable the Panel to carry 
out its statutory responsibilities to review and make a report on the proposed appointment of a 
Chief Finance Officer. 
 

4. Report Background 
 
4.1 The Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011 schedule 1 paragraph 6(1)(b) specifies that 

a Police and Crime Commissioner (PCC) must appoint a person to be responsible for the proper 
administration of the PCC’s financial affairs, referred to as the PCC’s chief finance officer. 
Schedule 1 of the 2011 Act further specifies that a person appointed as the PCC’s chief finance 
officer must be qualified for appointment by being a member of one or more identified 
professional bodies for accountancy. 
 

4.2 Schedule 1 paragraph 9 of the 2011 Act requires that a PCC must notify the relevant Police and 
Crime Panel of the proposed appointment of a chief finance officer. In such cases the PCC must 
also notify the Police and Crime panel of the following information:  
a) The name of the person whom the PCC is proposing to appoint (“the candidate”); 
b) The criteria used to assess the suitability of the candidate for the appointment; 
c) Why the candidate satisfies those criteria; and 
d) The terms and conditions on which the candidate is to be appointed.   
 

4.3 Schedule 1 paragraphs 10-12 require that when a Police and Crime Panel is notified of a proposed 
appointment it must review the proposed appointment and make a report on it to the PCC.  
The report must include a recommendation to the PCC as to whether or not the candidate should 
be appointed.  
 

4.4 A Police and Crime Panel must review the proposed appointment at a confirmation hearing.  
A confirmation hearing is defined as: “A meeting of the panel, held in public, at which the 
candidate is requested to appear for the purpose of answering questions relating to the 
appointment.” Supporting guidance produced by the Local Government Association (LGA)  
and the Centre for Governance and Scrutiny (CfGS) advises that a confirmation hearing  
should not be dealt with as an item of business at a standard panel meeting but conducted as a 
separate meeting.  
 

4.5 A Police and Crime Panel must complete the process of reviewing and reporting on a proposed 
appointment within three weeks of being notified of it by the PCC. 
 

5. Issues and Choices 
 
5.1 This confirmation hearing of the Northamptonshire Police, Fire and Crime Panel (“the Panel”) has 

been convened to enable the Panel to review and make a report on the proposed appointment 
by the Police, Fire and Crime Commissioner for Northamptonshire (“the Commissioner”) of an 
interim Chief Finance Officer following notification of the proposed appointment by the 
Commissioner.   

 

Page 6



 
 

 

5.2 A report by the Commissioner providing information on the proposed appointment is included 
separately on the agenda for the hearing. The need to appoint an interim Chief Finance Officer 
arises from the decision of the current post holder to retire at the end of 2023.      
 
Confirmation Hearing Procedure 

 
5.3 It is proposed that the Panel conducts the confirmation hearing according to the following 

process, which reflects statutory requirements and good practice and has been used successfully 
in the past:  

a) The Panel Chair will welcome the candidate to the hearing and invite Panel members and 
host authority officers present to introduce themselves. 

b) The Chair will ask the Panel’s secretariat officer to outline briefly the format of the hearing. 
The Chair will invite Panel members to ask any related questions. 

c) The Chair will invite the Commissioner to outline the proposed appointment and introduce 
the candidate. The Chair will invite members to ask any related questions to the 
Commissioner.  

d) The Chair will invite Panel members to ask questions of the candidate. The Panel secretariat 
will work with Panel members to draw up these questions ahead of the hearing.  
The questions should reflect the principles set out in paragraphs 5.4 – 5.6 of this report.  

e) When all Panel members’ questions have been asked and addressed the  
Chair will invite the candidate to clarify any answers that they have given during the hearing 
and to ask any questions of the Panel, for example about the next steps in the process.  

f) The candidate will then withdraw from the meeting. 

g) The Panel will be asked to agree a resolution to exclude the press and public from the meeting 
before it considers its report to the Commissioner. 

h) The Panel will consider its report and conclusions. The possible outcomes that may result 
from a review of the proposed appointment of a chief finance officer are discussed in 
paragraphs 5.7 – 5.10 of this report.        

i) The Panel will send its report to the Commissioner by the end of the working day following 
the date of the confirmation hearing.   

j) The Panel will publish its report an appropriate time after the confirmation hearing, normally 
in liaison with the Commissioner to reflect that the Commissioner will also publish his own 
final decision on the proposed appointment following the hearing. 
   

Focus of questions to the candidate 
 

5.4 LGA / CfGS guidance recommends that confirmation hearings should focus on the  
following areas:  
a) Professional competence: i.e. the candidate’s ability to carry out the role, for example, their 

professional judgement and insight; and  
b) Personal independence: i.e. the need for the candidate to act in a manner that is 

operationally independent of the PCC.    
Page 7



 
 

 

 
5.5 The guidance further recommends that Police and Crime panels should think in terms of 

minimum standards applying to particular attributes: i.e. there should be minimum standards 
below which it would not be appropriate to appoint a candidate under any circumstances.  
Above this level, the Panel might have concerns but the candidate would still be ‘appointable’ at 
the discretion of the PFCC. 
 

5.6 This focus is intended to reflect that confirmation hearings should complement rather than 
duplicate a PCC’s systems for making the appointment in question: hearings are not intended to 
represent a re-staging of a previous selection process. 
 
Possible outcomes of the review 
 

5.7 The Panel should use the confirmation hearing to form a view about the professional competence 
and personal independence of the candidate and whether or not they meet the minimum 
standards for the role. Based on this it should agree the conclusion about the proposed 
appointment that it wishes to report to the Commissioner. 
 

5.8 The Panel essentially has the following options:    

a) If the Panel is satisfied that the candidate meets the criteria set out in the role profile for the 
post it can recommend to the Commissioner that the appointment be made.  

b) If the Panel considers that the candidate meets the criteria set out in the role profile for the 
post but has a query or concern about their suitability it can make a recommendation to this 
effect to the Commissioner.  

c) If the Panel concludes that the candidate does not meet the minimum requirements set out 
in the role profile for the post it can make a recommendation to the Commissioner that the 
appointment not be made.   

5.9 In all of the cases set out in paragraph 5.8 above the Commissioner may accept or reject the 
Panel’s recommendation and must notify the Panel of his response. The Panel does not have the 
power to veto the proposed appointment of a Chief Finance Officer as it does with the proposed 
appointments of a Chief Constable or a Chief Fire Officer.  

5.10 LGA / CfGS guidance anticipates that a recommendation not to appoint should be used rarely, 
given that it should only need to be used in a scenario where the Panel concludes that the 
candidate proposed by the Commissioner does not meet the minimum requirements for the 
position in question.   
 

6. Implications (including financial implications) 
 
6.1 Resources and Financial 

 
6.1.1 There are no resources or financial implications arising from the proposal. 

 
Page 8



 
 

 

6.2 Legal  
 

6.2.1 There are no legal implications arising from the proposal. 
 

6.3 Risk  
 

6.3.1 There are no significant risks arising from the proposed recommendation in this report. 
 

7. Background Papers 
 
Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011 

Police and Crime Panels Guidance on Confirmation Hearings Local Government Association and Centre 
for Public Scrutiny (August 2012) 

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



Formal no�fica�on to the Northamptonshire Police, Fire and Crime Panel of the proposed 
appointment to the posi�on of Interim Chief Finance Officer (Sec�on 151 Officer) as 

required under the Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011. 

1. Introduc�on

1.1 A�er receiving no�fica�on of Helen King’s re�rement as Chief Finance Officer/Sec�on 
151 Officer we want to recruit someone with the skills and experience to undertake 
this statutory role, as specified within the Police Reform Act and Social Responsibility 
Act 2011 (the Act), to ensure that we con�nue to press forward with the work of the 
Office. This person will hold the responsibili�es of Chief Finance Officer and Sec�on 
151 Officer (as defined in the Local Government Act 1972) and will undertake these 
important func�ons un�l the role is adver�sed and a new Chief Execu�ve is appointed. 

1.2 The Police, Fire and Crime Panel (the Panel) is required to undertake a confirma�on 
hearing to review and confirm the appointment of a Chief Finance Officer. The same 
process is followed for interim appointments. 

1.3 In line with provision in Schedule 1(9) of the Act (Scrutiny of Senior Appointments) the 
Commissioner must inform the Panel of the following informa�on: 

a) The name of the person whom the commissioner is proposing to appoint (‘the
candidate’);

b) The criteria used to assess the suitability of the candidate for the appointment;
c) Why the candidate sa�sfies those criteria; and
d) The terms and condi�ons on which the candidate is to be appointed.

1.4 The Act also sets out the Panel’s responsibility to review the proposed appointment 
and make a report to the Police, Fire and Crime Commissioner within a period of three 
weeks from when the Panel received no�fica�on from the Commissioner of the 
proposed appointment, including a recommenda�on as to whether or not the 
candidate should be appointed.  

1.5 The Panel must hold a public confirma�on hearing before making a report and 
recommenda�on to the Commissioner in rela�on to a proposed senior appointment. 
At this mee�ng the candidate is requested to appear to answer any ques�ons rela�ng 
to the appointment.  

Page 11

Agenda Item 5b



1.6 The Panel may, having reviewed the proposed appointment, either recommend 
approval or refusal of the appointment. (It should be noted this is a slightly different 
process to that for the appointment of Chief Constables and Chief Fire Officers’, 
where an op�on to veto an appointment by a two thirds majority is also open to 
the Panel.) 

1.7 If the Panel supports the proposed appointment, the candidate is then confirmed in 
role. Should the Panel choose to recommend refusal of the proposed appointment, 
the Commissioner may accept or reject such a recommenda�on, and must no�fy the 
Panel of his response. 

2. The Proposed Appointment

2.1 Given the urgency of the need to ensure that this statutory role is undertaken, I 
propose Vaughan Ashcro� for the role on an interim basis un�l a�er the PFCC elec�ons 
in May 2024. 

2.2 Vaughan is a strategic finance professional with considerable experience of all aspects 
of policing and fire financial arrangements, accoun�ng and strategic planning, 
including 5 years at the most senior level of financial management. He is currently the 
Chief Finance Officer for the Chief Constable. 

2.3 Vaughan will be well known to members of the Police Fire and Crime Panel as he 
currently acts as Deputy PFCC 151 officer, depu�sing for Helen. He has formally 
undertaken the deputy role since the joint finance team was established in 2020.  

2.4 With his extensive knowledge of the business, and key players within it, Vaughan will 
be able to hit the ground running and steer a course through the budget and precept 
processes for both police and fire partners.  

2.5 A key essen�al criterion for the role is experience of ac�ng as a sec�on 151 officer. As 
Vaughan is the only person within the organisa�on with this specific experience, 
coupled with the fact the fact that he currently acts as Deputy 151 officer, expressions 
of interest from within the organisa�on were not sought. 

2.6 In order to undertake the role Vaughan will step aside from his current role and 
responsibili�es as the Police sec�on 151 officer to prevent any poten�al conflicts of 
interest. 

3. The terms and condi�ons on which the proposed candidate will be appointed

3.1 I have considered the salary band for the Chief Finance Officer role and I am proposing 
that it is at a salary equivalent of £110,000 per annum. 

3.2 As this is a temporary role Vaughan will be seconded into the office and will retain all 
the employment rights and en�tlements accrued in his current, substan�ve role. 

3.3 It is my inten�on that the role will commence on 22nd December. 

Page 12



 
3.4 Due to the significant financial workload arising through the budget and precept 

process at the start of the calendar year, and the forthcoming PFCC elec�ons due in 
May 2024 I am proposing that this role remains interim un�l a�er the elec�on, at 
which point whoever is the PFCC for Northamptonshire will be able to make a 
substan�ve appointment. I will, however, ensure all the preparatory work for a 
recruitment process is completed to prevent unnecessary delays post-elec�on.  

 
4. Financial Implica�ons 
 
4.1 With the excep�on of a few days in December 2023, this is cost neutral. 
 
5. Recommenda�on 
 
5.1 The Panel is requested to review and confirm the appointment of Vaughan Ashcro� to 

the posi�on of Chief Finance Officer for the Police, Fire and Crime Commissioner for 
Northamptonshire as set out above. 

 
Stephen Mold  
Police, Fire and Crime Commissioner for Northamptonshire 
 
Appendix A – Job Descrip�on of Chief Finance Officer 
Appendix B – Vaughan Ashcro�’s Curriculum Vitae  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 13



Appendix A 
 
NORTHAMPTONSHIRE OFFICE OF THE POLICE, FIRE AND CRIME 
COMMISSIONER JOB DESCRIPTION  
 
JOB TITLE: Chief Finance Officer to The Police, Fire and Crime Commissioner 
(PFCC) and  
Northamptonshire Commissioner Fire and Rescue Authority (NCFRA).  
 
SCALE: Spot Salary  
 
SUPERVISION AND CONTROL: Police, Fire and Crime Commissioner  
 
PLACE OF WORK: Office of the Police, Fire and Crime Commissioner  
 
HOURS OF WORK: 37  
 
PURPOSE OF THE JOB:  
To exercise the statutorily defined responsibilities for all financial affairs and have 
accountability for the financial probity for the two organisations of:  
 

•  Policing – for the Office of the Northamptonshire Police, Fire and Crime 
Commissioner (OPFCC); and  

• Fire – for Northamptonshire Commissioner Fire and Rescue Authority (NCFRA)  
 
To exercise the statutory arrangements for proper financial administration and 
governance as set out within the statutory responsibilities under Section 151 of the Local 
Government Act, the Local Government Finance Act 1988, the Local Government Act 
2003 and other relevant legislation.  
 
To deliver the Police, Fire and Crime Commissioner’s key corporate and partnership 
priorities.  
 
To be the principal policy adviser to the PFCC on matters relevant to portfolio.  
 
To ensure effective use of resources through the Corporate management Team and 
wider workforce.  
 
Ensure the Office of the Police, Fire and Crime Commissioner and Northamptonshire 
Commissioner Fire and Rescue Authority have appropriate and effective decision 
making processes in line with the principles of good governance.  
 
Ensure effective risk and performance management to provide assurance that the 
OPFCC is meeting its aims and complies with financial and legislative requirements in 
line with core values.  
 
Act as an advocate for the PFCC and NCFRA at a local, regional and national level.  

Page 14



MAIN RESPONSIBILITIES:  
Director Responsibilities  
1. To lead strategically across the development and delivery of policy and practice, 
creating and implementing the content of the Commissioner’s programme.  
 
2. To provide strategic direction and financial advice and challenge to the Commissioner 
in fulfilling his functions and providing professional leadership, responsibility and 
management of the overall budget, strategy and operational framework for the Police, 
Fire and Crime Commissioner and the Northamptonshire Commissioner Fire and 
Rescue Authority.  
 
3. Discharge fully responsibilities delegated by the Police, Fire and Crime Commissioner 
in discharging his responsibilities in accordance with the provisions of the Police Reform 
and Social Responsibility Act 2011.  
 
4. To represent the PFCC across executive, senior stakeholder and governmental 
relationships. To secure effective and highly productive relationships with key partner 
agencies, including local government and wider public services.  
 
5. Influence a range of policy makers, public bodies, partners and suppliers to ensure 
NCFRA and the PFCC are well positioned to meet existing objectives and new 
challenges.  
 
6. To be the key adviser to the Police, Fire and Crime Commissioner, on key areas of 
policy and practice and lead on the development and delivery of strategy and plans 
within scope of portfolio.  
 
7. To communicate at an executive level with senior stakeholders within and beyond the 
County, forging high-level relationships, fostering strategic partnerships, influencing key 
investment and policy decisions and enhancing the reputation and influence of the 
OPFCC and NCFRA. Ensure that both NCFRA and the OPFCC significantly contribute 
to national considerations concerning fire, policing and public safety;  
 
8. Lead on the design, development and delivery of strategies relevant to portfolio, 
working collaboratively with key partners across the police force, fire and other 
organisations;  
 
9. Provide strategic advice to the Police, Fire and Crime Commissioner in fields relevant 
to portfolio, ensuring latest developments in national and international policy and 
practice inform local thinking;  
 
10. Engage with partners across fire, policing, justice and third sector organisations to 
develop innovative approaches to service delivery and to seek funding to support new 
initiatives;  
 
11. To deputise for the other Directors and to formally represent the Police, Fire and 
Crime Commissioner, as required.  
 

Page 15



Statutory Responsibilities:  
1. Discharge fully the responsibilities of the Section 151 Officer for the Police Fire and 
Crime Commissioner (OPFCC) Policing Group, (including any companies, charities or 
joint ventures within the group) in accordance with the responsibilities under the Local 
Government Act s.151 and the Police, Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011.  
 
2. Discharge fully the responsibilities of the Section 151 Officer for Northamptonshire 
Commissioner Fire and Rescue Authority (NCFRA) in accordance with the 
responsibilities under the Local Government Act s.151 and the Police, Reform and 
Social Responsibility Act 2011  
 
3. Discharge fully the Duty of Best Value responsibilities as set out in Section 3 of the 
Local Government Act 1999 (as amended by s137 of the Local Government & Public 
Involvement in Health Act 2007).  
 
4. For both NCFRA and Policing: discharge the financial strategies, budget negotiations 
and all statutory and public financial engagement, ensuring financial legislation is 
complied with.  
 
5. In conjunction with the monitoring officer to ensure compliance with the requirements 
of all statutory, legislative and financial frameworks.  
 
6. Ensure propriety in the conduct of the Commissioner’s business, including making 
proper arrangements and governance for contracts and tendering procedures.  
 
7. Discharge professional leadership of Police and NCFRA finance functions to ensure 
both services have the capacity to deliver current and future priorities in accordance with 
relevant government legislation, professional standards and leading edge practices.  
 
8. For both NCFRA and Policing, ensure appropriate financial standards and processes 
are in place.  
 
9. Ensure the PFCC and NCFRA interests are represented in regard to the 
Northamptonshire Pension Fund, the Police and the Firefighters Pension Fund.  
 
10. As the statutory officer charged with governance, lead the Policing, NCFRA and 
public sector companies engagement with external and internal auditors and discharge 
those responsibilities at the Joint Independent Audit Committee (JIAC).  
 
This post has been identified as being politically restricted under the Local Government 
and Housing Act 1989 as amended by the Local Democracy, Economic, Development 
and Construction Act 2009.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 16



ROLE SPECIFIC ESSENTIAL CRITERIA  
Qualifications:  
1. To hold a Management qualification or degree and significant experience in 
organisational leadership.  
 
2. To evidence previous experience working as a Chief Officer and Section 151 Officer in 
large and complex organisations;  

3. Qualified CCAB (Consultative Committee of Accountancy Bodies).  
 
4. Membership of one or more professional bodies as set out in s.113 of the Local 
Government Finance Act 1988.  
 
5. Evidence of continuing professional development.  
 
Background and Experience:  
6. Substantial knowledge and experience of leading financial planning, budget 
preparation and control, financial risk assessment, management and resolution, 
statutory accounting, and financial systems and control across more than one large and 
complex organisation  
 
7. Proven experience of providing strategic financial and policy advice and challenge to 
senior and political leaders.  
 
8. Experience and success in: a. Promoting, leading and influencing high performing, 
professional teams  
b. Effective partnership working and collaboration; developing and maintaining positive 
and productive relationships with a range of internal and external stakeholders and 
strategic partners.  
c. Driving cultural change and organisational vision and values.  
d. Operating in a political environment, providing professional advice and guidance to 
and building effective working relationships with senior managers, government officials 
and elected members.  
e. Developing strategic policies and plans.  
 
 
Skills/Knowledge  
9. Excellent current working knowledge and understanding of police, fire and local 
government law, practice and statutory requirements.  
 

Page 17



 
10. Thorough understanding of the current issues and future challenges facing the 
sector and their impact across a range of policing and fire services,  
 
11. Demonstrable leadership skills; specifically the ability to “take people” with you and 
promote organisational vision and values.  
 
12. Effective interpersonal and communication skills, with ability to engage a range of 
audiences and positively represent the PFCC and NCFRA,  
 
13. Ability to see the big picture, interpret it and develop relevant strategies, plans and 
deliverables.  
 
14. Ability to encourage and engender collaborative working and build positive 
relationships with external agencies, partners and internal and external stakeholders.  
 
15. Political awareness and the ability to work successfully within a political environment 
through effective working relationships.  
 
16. Ability to challenge others constructively and to make informed decisions that if 
challenged can be substantiated.  

17. Excellent communication and interpersonal skills, including strong report writing and 
presentation skills.  
 
18. Ability to learn from experience and to share that learning through future actions to 
improve service delivery and performance.  
 
19. Strong management skills, with ability to lead and influence others, make informed 
decisions and build and maintain successful relationships and networks.  
 
20. Strong influencing and negotiating skills.  
 
21. Strong financial and budget management skills.  
 
22. Highly developed analytical and problem-solving skills, able to work strategically and 
apply sound judgement.  
 
Personal Qualities  
23. Passionate about providing services to the community.  
 
24. Positive role model for behaviours and culture.  
 
25. Collaborative and strategic leader – able to motivate and work across boundaries 
and achieve performance/results through others.  
 

Page 18



 
26. Sound judgement in devising and evaluating options and dealing with complex 
issues.  
 
27. Demonstrable evidence of policy judgement, political awareness and astuteness  
 
28. Robust and resilient, with drive and self-motivation.  
 
29. Commercially / financially astute and client focussed.  
 
30. Innovative, with a ‘can do’ attitude.  
 
31. Flexible and able to meet competing demands and challenging circumstances.  
 
32. Ability to work under pressure and work at pace to achieve priorities.  
 
33. Personality and credibility that engages and commands the confidence of all 
stakeholders.  
 
34. Building rapport and relationships with ease and quickly gaining trust.  
 
35. Ethical, accountable behaviour including a personal commitment to equality, 
diversity and inclusivity.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 19



Appendix B 

VAUGHAN ASHCROFT BA (Hons) FCCA 
[Personal Contact Details Redacted] 

 

A strategic finance professional with considerable experience of all aspects of policing and fire 
financial arrangements, accounting and strategic planning. 

Experience in leading and motivating large teams, managing change and driving tangible performance 
improvements, with a focus on good governance and customer service. 

 

WORK EXPERIENCE 
Chief Finance Officer – Northamptonshire Police 
June 2020 – Present 

• The Chief Constable’s chief financial advisor and Chief Financial Officer (Section 151 Officer) 
and active member of the executive team. 

• Responsibility for the Enabling Services Joint Finance function with responsibility for 
budgeting, payroll, statutory reporting, continuous improvement and value for money. 

• Responsibility for all S151 financial arrangements for the Force, ensuring sound internal 
control processes are in place, appropriate financial and management accounting 
arrangements and systems are embedded. 

• Leading the finance workstream following exit from the multi-force collaboration and 
transfer of Fire governance to successfully build a joint finance function, which has delivered 
a significant improvement in performance and confidence across the police, fire and PFCC 
organisations. 

• Development and delivery of the budget strategy and medium term financial plan, working 
closely with the PFCC S151 to ensure a joined up, cohesive and effective financial planning 
and reporting framework. 

• Preparing and presenting regular reports and advice at key meetings including the Force 
Executive Board, Strategic Planning Board, Joint Independent Audit Committee and 
Accountability Board. 

• Challenging and scrutinising plans and proposals submitted by Chief Officers, providing 
professional scrutiny, advice and recommendations. 

• Ensuring the timely delivery of statutory documents such as the Statement of Accounts and 
achieving unqualified audit opinions.  Establishing and maintaining a professional working 
relationship with internal and external auditors.  

Head of Finance – Northamptonshire Police 
May 2018 – May 2020   

• Management, review and development of the financial management and internal controls of 
the Force to ensure financial governance, proper use of public funds and the management of 
risk. 

Page 20



• Provision of high-level financial advice to Chief Officers and Senior Managers in relation to 
financial strategy and management, investment decisions, prudential code issues and best 
financial and procurement practice.  To lead the Finance Department in support of delivering 
the Force’s vision. 

• Supporting the development of the Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP) and financial 
strategies in order to inform effective decision making in a Value-for-Money context. 

• Leading considerable improvements to budget management practices, development of 
strategies and increasing the profile and efficiency of the finance function. 

Strategic Management Accountant – Leicestershire Police 
Apr 2015 – May 2018 

• Responsibility for ensuring the effective & efficient use of the Force’s financial resources and to 
provide pro-active financial support and guidance to budget holders for the financial management 
of their delegated budgets. 

• Oversight of the management accounting function with responsibility for budgeting strategy and 
medium term financial planning. 

• Development of budgeting strategies – improving confidence in medium term financial planning. 
Financial Management Accountant – Leicestershire Police 
2010 – 2015  
Finance Officer – Leicestershire Police 
2007 – 2010 
Transport Administrator – Leicestershire Police 
2002 – 2007   
 

EDUCATION 
FCCA (Fellow of the Association of Certified Chartered Accountants) – Qualified 2009 

BA (Hons) Media Studies and Music Technology (2:1), De Montfort University, Leicester – 2002 

A-Level – 1999 

Mathematics (A), Film Studies (A), Music (B), General Studies (B) 

AS-Level – 1999 

Further Mathematics (B) 

GCSE – 1997 

Media Studies (A*), Mathematics (A), English Literature (A), English Language (A), Science Double 
Award (AA), Music (A), Integrated Humanities (B) 

 

PERSONAL INTERESTS 
In my free time I enjoy the theatre, baking, socialising and keeping fit.  I am an active member of local 
amateur theatre groups both on stage and behind the scenes, as treasurer and chairman on a 
voluntary basis. 

Page 21



 

REFERENCES 
[Personal Contact Details Redacted] 

Helen King, [former] Chief Finance Officer (S151) Northamptonshire Police Fire & Crime Commissioner 

Paul Bullen, Assistant Chief Officer, Northamptonshire Police & Fire 

Paul Dawkins, Assistant Chief Officer, Leicestershire Police 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 22


	Agenda
	5a Confirmation Hearing Procedure
	5b Proposed appointment by the Police, Fire and Crime Commissioner for Northamptonshire of an interim Chief Finance Officer
	VAUGHAN ASHCROFT BA (Hons) FCCA
	WORK EXPERIENCE
	Chief Finance Officer – Northamptonshire Police
	June 2020 – Present
	Head of Finance – Northamptonshire Police
	May 2018 – May 2020
	Strategic Management Accountant – Leicestershire Police
	Apr 2015 – May 2018
	Financial Management Accountant – Leicestershire Police
	2010 – 2015
	Finance Officer – Leicestershire Police
	2007 – 2010
	Transport Administrator – Leicestershire Police
	2002 – 2007


	EDUCATION
	PERSONAL INTERESTS
	REFERENCES


